

Proposed in Rate Order No. WAPA-207

Rate Schedule CV-~~T3~~T4  
(Supersedes Schedules CV- ~~T2~~T3)

UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY  
WESTERN AREA POWER ADMINISTRATION

CENTRAL VALLEY PROJECT

~~SCHEDULE OF RATE FOR~~ POINT-TO-POINT TRANSMISSION SERVICE

**Effective:**

October 1, ~~2011~~2024, through September 30, ~~2019~~2029, or until superseded, whichever occurs earlier. ~~[Note: This rate schedule was extended by Rate Order No. WAPA-185 through September 30, 2024.]~~

**Available:**

~~In~~Within the ~~marketing~~ area served by the Western Area Power Administration (~~Western~~WAPA), Sierra Nevada Customer Service Region (~~SN~~).

**Applicable:**

To customers receiving Central Valley Project (CVP) firm and/or non-firm Point-to-Point (PTP) transmission service.

**Character and Conditions of Service:**

Transmission service for three-phase, alternating current at 60-hertz, delivered and metered at the voltages and points of delivery or receipt, adjusted for losses, and delivered to points of delivery. This service includes scheduling and system control and dispatch service needed to support the transmission service.

**Formula Rate:**

The formula rate for CVP firm and non-firm PTP transmission includes three components:.

## Component 1:

$$\frac{\text{CVP Transmission Revenue Requirement (TRR)} (\$)}{\text{Contracted PTP Transmission Capacity (PTPc)} + \text{Network Integration Transmission Service Capacity (NITSc)}} = \frac{\text{Total Transmission Capacity (TTC)} + \text{Network Integration Transmission Service Capacity (NITSc)}}{\text{(kW)}}$$

Where:

~~CVP TRR =~~ TRR is the cost associated with facilities that support the transfer capability of the CVP transmission system, excluding generation facilities and radial lines

~~TTC =~~ The PTPc is the total PTP transmission capacity (kW) under long-term contract between WAPA and other parties

~~NITSc =~~ The NITSc is the 12-month average coincident peaks (kW) of Network Integrated Transmission Service (NITS) customers at the time of the monthly CVP transmission system peak (kW)

~~The NITSc is the 12-month average coincident peaks of Network Integrated Transmission Service (NITS) customers at the time of the monthly CVP transmission system peak. For rate design purposes, Western WAPA-SN's use of the transmission system to meet its statutory obligations is treated as NITS.~~

Western WAPA-SN may revise the rate from Component 1 based on either of the following conditions: (1) updated financial data available in March of each year; or (2) a change

in the numerator or denominator that results in a rate change of at least \$0.05 per kilowatt month (kW month). Rate change notifications will be posted on ~~Western~~WAPA-SN's Open Access Same-Time Information System (OASIS).

### **Component 2:**

Any charges or credits associated with the creation, termination, or modification to any tariff, contract, or rate schedule accepted or approved by FERC or other regulatory bodies ~~iesy~~ will be passed on to each relevant customer. The charges or credits apply to the service to which this rate methodology applies. When possible, WAPA-SN will pass through charges or credits directly to the customer in the same manner WAPA-SN is charged or credited. When not possible, the charges or credits will be passed through using Component 1 of the formula rate.

~~Any charges or credits associated with the creation, termination, or modification to any tariff, contract, or rate schedule accepted or approved by the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission (FERC) or other regulatory bodies will be passed on to each relevant customer. The FERC's or other regulatory bodies' accepted or approved charges or credits apply to the service to which this rate methodology applies. When possible, Western~~WAPA-SN ~~will pass through directly to the relevant customer FERC's or other regulatory bodies' accepted or approved charges or credits in the same manner~~WAPA-SN ~~is charged or credited. If FERC's or other regulatory bodies' accepted or approved charges or credits cannot be passed through directly to the relevant customer in the same manner~~WAPA-SN ~~is charged or credited, the charges or credits will be passed through using Component 1 of the formula rate.~~

### **Component 3:**

Any charges or credits from the Host Balancing Authority for providing this service will be passed on to each relevant customer. When possible, WAPA-SN will pass through charges and credits directly to the customer in the same manner WAPA-SN is charged or credited. When not possible, the charges or credits will be passed through using Component 1 of the formula rate. —  
~~Any charges or credits from the Host Balancing Authority (HBA) applied to Western WAPA-SN for providing this service will be passed through directly to the relevant customer in the same manner Western WAPA-SN is charged or credited to the extent possible. If the HBA's costs charges or credits cannot be passed through to the relevant customer in the same manner Western WAPA-SN is charged or credited, the charges or credits will be passed through using Component 1 of the formula rate.~~

**Billing:**

The formula rate above applies to the maximum amount of capacity reserved for periods ranging from 1 hour to 1 month, payable whether used or not. Billing will occur monthly.

**Adjustment for Losses:**

Losses incurred for service under this rate schedule will be accounted for as agreed to by the parties in accordance with the service agreements.

**Adjustment for Audit Adjustments:**

Financial audit adjustments that apply to the formula rate under this rate schedule will be evaluated on a case-by-case basis to determine the appropriate treatment for repayment and cash flow management.

Proposed in Rate Order No. WAPA-207

Rate Schedule CV-~~NWT5~~-NWT6  
(Supersedes Schedule CV-~~NWT4~~~~NWT5~~)

**UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY  
WESTERN AREA POWER ADMINISTRATION**

**CENTRAL VALLEY PROJECT**

**SCHEDULE OF RATE FOR NETWORK INTEGRATION TRANSMISSION SERVICE**

**Effective:**

~~October 1, 2024, through September 30, 2029, or until superseded, whichever occurs earlier. October 1, 2011~~2024~~, through September 30, 2019~~2029~~. [Note: This rate schedule was extended by Rate Order No. WAPA-185 through September 30, 2024.]~~

**Available:**

~~Within~~In the ~~marketing~~ area served by the Western Area Power Administration (~~Western~~WAPA), Sierra Nevada Customer Service Region (SN).

**Applicable:**

To customers receiving Central Valley Project (CVP) Network Integration Transmission Service (NITS).

**Character and Conditions of Service:**

Transmission service for three-phase, alternating current at 60-hertz, delivered and metered at the voltages and points of delivery or receipt, adjusted for losses, and delivered to points of delivery. This service includes scheduling and system control and dispatch service needed to support the transmission service.

**Formula Rate:**

The formula rate for CVP NITS includes three components:

### Component 1:

The NITS revenue requirement equals the CVP ~~Transmission~~ ~~Revenue~~ ~~Requirement~~ (TRR) less the CVP firm point-to-point revenue. Each NITS customer's allocation is based on the following formula:

$$\frac{\text{NITS Monthly Charge}}{\text{NITS customer's monthly demand charge}} = \frac{\text{NITS Customer's Load-Ratio Share}}{\text{NITS customer's load ratio share}} \times \frac{\text{Annual NITS TRR}}{12} \times \frac{1}{12} \text{ of the Annual Network TRR.}$$

Where:

NITS customer's load ratio share = The NITS customer's load, hourly, or in accordance with approved policies or procedures, (including behind the meter generation minus the NITS customer's adjusted Base Resource) coincident with the monthly CVP transmission system peak, averaged over a 12-month rolling period, expressed as a ratio.

Annual Network TRR = The total CVP TRR less revenue from long-term contracts for the CVP transmission between ~~Western~~ WAPA-SN and other parties.

The Annual Network TRR will be revised when the formula rate from Component 1 of the CVP Transmission Rate under Rates Schedule CV-~~T3-T4~~ is revised.

### Component 2:

Any charges or credits associated with the creation, termination, or modification to any tariff, contract, or rate schedule accepted or approved by FERC or other regulatory body will be passed on to each relevant customer. The charges or credits apply to the service to which this rate methodology applies. When possible, WAPA-SN will pass through charges or credits directly to

the customer in the same manner WAPA-SN is charged or credited. When not possible, the charges or credits will be passed through using Component 1 of the formula rate.

~~Any charges or credits associated with the creation, termination, or modification to any tariff, contract, or rate schedule accepted or approved by the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission (FERC) or other regulatory bodies will be passed on to each relevant customer. The FERC's or other regulatory bodies' accepted or approved charges or credits apply to the service to which this rate methodology applies. When possible, Western WAPA-SN will pass through directly to the relevant customer. FERC's or other regulatory bodies' accepted or approved charges or credits in the same manner Western WAPA-SN is charged or credited. If FERC's or other regulatory bodies' accepted or approved charges or credits cannot be passed through directly to the relevant customer in the same manner Western WAPA-SN is charged or credited, the charges or credits will be passed through using Component 1 of the formula rate.~~

### **Component 3:**

Any charges or credits from the Host Balancing Authority for providing this service will be passed on to each relevant customer. When possible, WAPA-SN will pass through charges and credits directly to the customer in the same manner WAPA-SN is charged or credited. When not possible, the charges or credits will be passed through using Component 1 of the formula rate. —

~~Any charges or credits from the Host Balancing Authority (HBA) applied to Western WAPA-SN for providing this service will be passed through directly to the relevant customer in the same manner Western WAPA-SN is charged or credited to the extent possible. If the HBA's costs charges or credits cannot be passed through to the relevant customer in the same manner Western WAPA-SN is charged or credited, the charges or credits will be passed through using Component 1 of the formula rate.~~

**Billing:**

NITS will be billed monthly under the formula rate.

**Adjustment for Losses:**

Losses incurred for service under this rate schedule will be accounted for as agreed to by the parties in accordance with the service agreement.

**~~Adjustment for~~ Audit Adjustments:**

Financial audit adjustments that apply to the formula rate under this rate schedule will be evaluated on a case-by-case basis to determine the appropriate treatment for repayment and cash flow management.



Rate Schedule COTP-~~T3~~T4  
(Supersedes Schedule COTP-~~T2~~T3)

UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY  
WESTERN AREA POWER ADMINISTRATION

CALIFORNIA-OREGON TRANSMISSION PROJECT

**SCHEDULE OF RATE FOR POINT-TO-POINT TRANSMISSION SERVICE**

**Effective:**

October 1, ~~2011~~2024, through September 30, ~~2019~~2029, or until superseded, whichever occurs earlier. ~~[Note: This rate schedule was extended by Rate Order No. WAPA-185 through September 30, 2024.]~~

**Available:**

~~Within~~In the ~~marketing~~ area served by the Western Area Power Administration (~~Western~~WAPA), Sierra Nevada Customer Service Region (~~SN~~).

**Applicable:**

To customers receiving California-Oregon Transmission Project (COTP) firm and/or non-firm point-to-point (PTP) transmission service.

**Character and Conditions of Service:**

Transmission service for three-phase, alternating current at 60-hertz, delivered and metered at the voltages and points of delivery or receipt, adjusted for losses, and delivered to points of delivery. This service includes scheduling and system control and dispatch service needed to support the transmission service.

**Formula Rate:**

The formula rate for COTP firm and non-firm PTP transmission service includes three components:-\_

**Component 1:**

$$\frac{\text{COTP Transmission Revenue Requirement (TRR)}}{\text{Western WAPA-SN's COTP Seasonal Capacity}}$$

Where:

$$\text{COTP Transmission Revenue Requirement (TRR)} = \text{Is } \text{COTP Seasonal TRR}$$

(Western WAPA-SN's costs associated with facilities that support the transfer capability of the COTP).

$$\text{Western WAPA-SN's COTP Seasonal Capacity} = \text{Is WAPA-SN's share of COTP transmission capacity, Western WAPA-SN's share of COTP capacity (subject to curtailment) under the current California-Oregon Intertie (COI) transfer capability for the season. The three seasons are defined as follows: Summer June through October; Winter November through March; and Spring April through May.}$$

subject to curtailment under the current California-Oregon Intertie (COI) transfer capability.

Western WAPA-SN will update the rate from Component 1 for COTP firm and non-firm PTP transmission service at least 15 days before the start of each COI rating the season rate period.

Rate change notifications will be posted on Western WAPA-SN's Open Access Same-Time Information System website (OASIS).

**Component 2:**

Any charges or credits associated with the creation, termination, or modification to any tariff, contract, or rate schedule accepted or approved by FERC or other regulatory body will be passed on to each relevant customer. The charges or credits apply to the service to which this rate methodology applies. When possible, WAPA-SN will pass through charges or credits directly to the customer in the same manner WAPA-SN is charged or credited. When not possible, the charges or credits will be passed through using Component 1 of the formula rate.

~~Any charges or credits associated with the creation, termination, or modification to any tariff, contract, or rate schedule accepted or approved by the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission (FERC) or other regulatory bodies will be passed on to each relevant customer. The FERC's or other regulatory bodies' accepted or approved charges or credits apply to the service to which this rate methodology applies. When possible, Western WAPA-SN will pass through directly to the relevant customer FERC's or other regulatory bodies' accepted or approved charges or credits in the same manner Western WAPA-SN is charged or credited. If FERC's or other regulatory bodies' accepted or approved charges or credits cannot be passed through directly to the relevant customer in the same manner Western WAPA-SN is charged or credited, the charges or credits will be passed through using Component 1 of the formula rate.~~

### **Component 3:**

Any charges or credits from the Host Balancing Authority for providing this service will be passed on to each relevant customer. When possible, WAPA-SN will pass through charges and credits directly to the customer in the same manner WAPA-SN is charged or credited. When not possible, the charges or credits will be passed through using Component 1 of the formula rate.

~~Any charges or credits from the Host Balancing Authority (HBA) applied to WesternWAPA-SN for providing this service will be passed through directly to the relevant customer in the same manner. WesternWAPA-SN is charged or credited to the extent possible. If the HBA's costs charges or credits cannot be passed through to the relevant customer in the same manner, WesternWAPA-SN is charged or credited, the charges or credits will be passed through using Component 1 of the formula rate.~~

**Billing:**

The formula rate above applies to the maximum amount of capacity reserved for periods ranging from 1 hour to 1 month, payable whether used or not. Billing will occur monthly.

**Adjustment for Losses:**

Losses incurred for service under this rate schedule will be accounted for as agreed to by the parties in accordance with the service agreement.

**Adjustment for Audit Adjustments:**

Financial audit adjustments that apply to the formula rate under this rate schedule will be evaluated on a case-by-case basis to determine the appropriate treatment for repayment and cash flow management.

Proposed in Rate Order No. WAPA-207

Rate Schedule CV-~~TPT7~~TPT8  
(Supersedes Schedule CV-~~TPT6~~TPT7)

**UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY  
WESTERN AREA POWER ADMINISTRATION**

**CENTRAL VALLEY PROJECT**

**SCHEDULE OF RATE FOR TRANSMISSION OF ~~WESTERN WAPA~~ POWER BY  
OTHERS**

**Effective:**

October 1, ~~2014~~2024, through September 30, ~~2019~~2029, or until superseded, whichever occurs earlier. [~~Note: This rate schedule was extended by Rate Order No. WAPA-185 through September 30, 2024.~~]

**Available:**

~~Within~~In the ~~marketing~~ area served by the Western Area Power Administration (~~Western~~WAPA), Sierra Nevada Customer Service Region (~~SN~~).

**Applicable:**

To ~~Western~~WAPA-SN's power service customers who require transmission service by a third-party to receive power sold by ~~Western~~WAPA-SN.

**Character and Conditions of Service:**

Transmission service for three-phase, alternating current at 60-hertz, delivered and metered at the voltages and points of delivery or receipt, adjusted for losses, and delivered to points as agreed to by the parties.

**Formula Rate:**

The formula rate for transmission of ~~Western~~WAPA-SN's power by others includes three components.

**Component 1:**

When ~~Western~~WAPA-SN uses transmission facilities other than its own in supplying ~~Western~~WAPA-SN power and costs are incurred by ~~Western~~WAPA-SN for the use of such facilities, the customer will pay all costs, including transmission losses, incurred in the delivery of such power.

### **Component 2:**

Any charges or credits associated with the creation, termination, or modification to any tariff, contract, or rate schedule accepted or approved by FERC or other regulatory body will be passed on to each relevant customer. The charges or credits apply to the service to which this rate methodology applies. When possible, WAPA-SN will pass through charges or credits directly to the customer in the same manner WAPA-SN is charged or credited. When not possible, the charges or credits will be passed through using Component 1 of the formula rate.~~Any charges or credits associated with the creation, termination, or modification to any tariff, contract, or rate schedule accepted or approved by the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission (FERC) or other regulatory bodies will be passed on to each relevant customer. The FERC's or other regulatory bodies' accepted or approved charges or credits apply to the service to which this rate methodology applies. When possible, WesternWAPA-SN will pass through directly to the relevant customer FERC's or other regulatory bodies' accepted or approved charges or credits in the same manner WesternWAPA-SN is charged or credited. If FERC's or other regulatory bodies' accepted or approved charges or credits cannot be passed through directly to the relevant customer in the same manner WesternWAPA-SN is charged or credited, the charges or credits will be passed through using Component 1 of the formula rate.~~

### **Component 3:**

~~– Any charges or credits from the Host Balancing Authority for providing this service will be passed on to each relevant customer. When possible, WAPA-SN will pass through charges and credits directly to the customer in the same manner WAPA-SN is charged or credited. When not possible, the charges or credits will be passed through using Component 1 of the formula rate.~~  
~~Any charges or credits from the Host Balancing Authority (HBA) applied to Western WAPA-SN for providing this service will be passed through directly to the relevant customer in the same manner Western WAPA-SN is charged or credited to the extent possible. If the HBA's costs charges or credits cannot be passed through to the relevant customer in the same manner Western WAPA-SN is charged or credited, the charges or credits will be passed through using Component 1 of the formula rate.~~

**Billing:**

Third-party transmission will be billed monthly under the formula rate.

**Adjustments for losses:**

All losses incurred for delivery of power under this rate schedule will be the responsibility of the customer that received the power.

**~~Adjustment for~~ Audit Adjustments:**

Financial audit adjustments that apply to the formula rate under this rate schedule will be evaluated on a case-by-case basis to determine the appropriate treatment for repayment and cash flow management.

Rate Schedule CV-~~RFS4~~RFS5  
(Supersedes Schedule CV-~~RFS3~~RFS4)

**UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY  
WESTERN AREA POWER ADMINISTRATION**

**CENTRAL VALLEY PROJECT**

**~~SCHEDULE OF RATE FOR~~ REGULATION AND FREQUENCY RESPONSE SERVICE**

**Effective:**

October 1, ~~2011~~2024, through September 30, ~~2019~~2029, or until superseded, whichever occurs earlier. ~~[Note: This rate schedule was extended by Rate Order No. WAPA-185 through September 30, 2024.]~~

**Available:**

~~Within~~In the ~~marketing~~ area served by the Western Area Power Administration (~~Western~~WAPA), Sierra Nevada Customer Service Region (SN).

**Applicable:**

To customers receiving Regulation and Frequency Response Service (~~R~~regulation).

**Character and Conditions of Service:**

Regulation is necessary to provide for the continuous balancing of resources and interchange with load and for maintaining scheduled interconnection frequency at 60-cycles per second. Regulation is accomplished by committing on-line generation whose output is raised or lowered, predominantly using automatic generating control equipment, as necessary, to follow the moment-by-moment changes in load.

**Formula Rate:**

The formula rate for regulation includes three components:

**Component 1:**



$$\text{Regulation Rate} = \frac{\text{Annual Regulation Revenue Requirement}}{\text{Annual Regulating Capacity (Kilowatt(kW))}}$$

Where:

The annual regulation revenue requirement includes: (1) the Central Valley Project generation costs associated with providing regulation, and (2) the non-facility costs allocated to regulation; and is calculated by dividing the Generation Revenue Requirement by the prior year plant capacity usage times the Regulation capacity.

The annual regulating capacity is one-half of the total regulating capacity bandwidths provided by WesternWAPA-SN under the Interconnected Operations Agreements with Sub-Balancing Authority (SBA) members.

The penalty for non-performance by an SBA customer who has committed to self-provision for their regulating capacity requirement will be the greater of 150 percent of WesternWAPA-SN's actual costs or 150 percent of the market price.

WesternWAPA-SN will revise the formula rate resulting from Component 1 based on either of the following two conditions: (1) updated financial data available in March of each year; or (2) a change in the numerator or denominator that results in a rate change of at least \$0.25 per kW month.

**Component 2:**

~~Any charges or credits associated with the creation, termination, or modification to any tariff, contract, or rate schedule accepted or approved by the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission (FERC) or other regulatory bodies will be passed on to each relevant customer. The FERC's or other regulatory bodies' accepted or approved charges or credits apply to the service to which this rate methodology applies. When possible, WesternWAPA-SN will pass through directly to the relevant customer FERC's or other regulatory bodies' accepted or approved charges or~~

~~credits in the same manner Western WAPA-SN is charged or credited. If FERC's or other regulatory bodies' accepted or approved charges or credits cannot be passed through directly to the relevant customer in the same manner Western WAPA-SN is charged or credited, the charges or credits will be passed through using Component 1 of the formula rate. Any charges or credits associated with the creation, termination, or modification to any tariff, contract, or rate schedule accepted or approved by FERC or other regulatory body will be passed on to each relevant customer. The charges or credits apply to the service to which this rate methodology applies. When possible, WAPA-SN will pass through charges or credits directly to the customer in the same manner WAPA-SN is charged or credited. When not possible, the charges or credits will be passed through using Component 1 of the formula~~

**Component 3:**

Any charges or credits from the Host Balancing Authority for providing this service will be passed on to each relevant customer. When possible, WAPA-SN will pass through charges and credits directly to the customer in the same manner WAPA-SN is charged or credited. When not possible, the charges or credits will be passed through using Component 1 of the formula rate.~~Any charges or credits from the Host Balancing Authority (HBA) applied to Western WAPA-SN for providing this service will be passed through directly to the relevant customer in the same manner Western WAPA-SN is charged or credited to the extent possible. If the HBA's costs charges or credits cannot be passed through to the relevant customer in the same manner Western WAPA-SN is charged or credited, the charges or credits will be passed through using Component 1 of the formula rate.~~

**Billing:**

The formula rate above will be applied to the regulating capacity bandwidth contained in the

service agreement. Billing will occur monthly.

**Adjustment for Audit Adjustments:**

Financial audit adjustments that apply to the formula rate under this rate schedule will be evaluated on a case-by-case basis to determine the appropriate treatment for repayment and cash flow management.

DRAFT

Proposed in Rate Order No. WAPA-207

Rate Schedule CV-~~SUR3~~SUR4SUR5  
(Supersedes Schedule CV-~~SUR3~~SUR4)

**UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY  
WESTERN AREA POWER ADMINISTRATION**

**CENTRAL VALLEY PROJECT**

**SCHEDULE OF RATE FOR ~~OPERATING RESERVE~~ - SUPPLEMENTAL RESERVE  
SERVICE**

**Effective:**

October 1, ~~2014~~2024, through September 30, ~~2019~~2029, or until superseded, whichever occurs earlier. [Note: This rate schedule was extended by Rate Order No. WAPA-185 through September 30, 2024.]

**Available:**

~~Within~~In the ~~marketing~~ area served by the Western Area Power Administration (~~Western~~WAPA), Sierra Nevada Customer Service Region (SN).

**Applicable:**

To customers receiving supplemental reserve service.

**Character and Conditions of Service:**

Supplemental reserve service supplies capacity that is available within the first 10 minutes to take load and is synchronized with the power system.

**Formula Rate:**

The formula rate for supplemental reserve service includes three components:

**Component 1:**

The formula rate for supplemental reserve service is the price consistent with the California Independent System Operator's (CAISO) market plus all costs incurred as a result of the sale of supplemental reserves, such as ~~Western~~WAPA-SN's scheduling costs.

For customers that have a contractual obligation to provide supplemental reserve service to Western WAPA-SN and do not fulfill that obligation, the penalty for non-performance is the greater of 150 percent of Western WAPA-SN's actual cost or 150 percent of the market price.

**Component 2:**

Any charges or credits associated with the creation, termination, or modification to any tariff, contract, or rate schedule accepted or approved by FERC or other regulatory body will be passed on to each relevant customer. The charges or credits apply to the service to which this rate methodology applies. When possible, WAPA-SN will pass through charges or credits directly to the customer in the same manner WAPA-SN is charged or credited. When not possible, the charges or credits will be passed through using Component 1 of the formula rate.

~~Any charges or credits associated with the creation, termination, or modification to any tariff, contract, or rate schedule accepted or approved by the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission (FERC) or other regulatory bodies will be passed on to each relevant customer. The FERC's or other regulatory bodies' accepted or approved charges or credits apply to the service to which this rate methodology applies. When possible, Western WAPA-SN will pass through directly to the relevant customer FERC's or other regulatory bodies' accepted or approved charges or credits in the same manner Western WAPA-SN is charged or credited. If FERC's or other regulatory bodies' accepted or approved charges or credits cannot be passed through directly to the relevant customer in the same manner Western WAPA-SN is charged or credited, the charges or credits will be passed through using Component 1 of the formula rate.~~

**Component 3:**

Any charges or credits from the Host Balancing Authority for providing this service will be passed on to each relevant customer. When possible, WAPA-SN will pass through charges and

credits directly to the customer in the same manner WAPA-SN is charged or credited. When not possible, the charges or credits will be passed through using Component 1 of the formula rate.

~~— Any charges or credits from the Host Balancing Authority (HBA) applied to Western WAPA-SN for providing this service will be passed through directly to the relevant customer in the same manner Western WAPA-SN is charged or credited to the extent possible. If the HBA's costs charges or credits cannot be passed through to the relevant customer in the same manner Western WAPA-SN is charged or credited, the charges or credits will be passed through using Component 1 of the formula rate.~~

**Billing:**

The formula rate above will be applied to the amount of supplemental reserve service sold.

Billing will occur monthly.

**Adjustment for Audit Adjustments:**

Financial audit adjustments that apply to the formula rate under this rate schedule will be evaluated on a case-by-case basis to determine the appropriate treatment for repayment and cash flow management.

Proposed in Rate Order No. WAPA-207

Rate Schedule CV-~~EID5~~EID6  
(Supersedes Schedule CV-~~EID4~~EID5)

**UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY  
WESTERN AREA POWER ADMINISTRATION**

**CENTRAL VALLEY PROJECT**

**SCHEDULE OF RATE FOR ENERGY IMBALANCE SERVICE**

**Effective:**

~~The first day of the first full billing period after March 25~~ October 1, 2024, through ~~December~~ September 30, 2024 ~~2029~~, or until superseded, whichever occurs earlier.

**Available:**

~~In~~ Within the ~~marketing~~ area served by the Western Area Power Administration (WAPA), Sierra Nevada Customer Service Region (SN).

**Applicable:**

To customers receiving Energy Imbalance (EI) Service.

**Character and Conditions of Service:**

EI Service is provided when a difference occurs between the scheduled and the actual delivery of energy to a load within the Sub-Balancing Authority (SBA) over an hour or in accordance with approved policies and procedures. The deviation, in megawatts, is the net scheduled amount of energy minus the net metered (actual delivered) amount.

EI Service uses the deviation bandwidth that is established in the service agreement or Interconnected Operations Agreements.

**Formula Rate:**

The formula rate for EI Service includes three components:

**Component 1:**

EI Service is applied to deviations as follows unless otherwise dictated by contract or policy:

- (1) deviations within the bandwidth will be tracked and settled financially, at the greater of the California Independent System Operator (CAISO) market price, or WAPA-SN's actual cost;
- (2) negative deviations (under-delivery), outside the deviation bandwidth, will be charged the greater of 150-percent of the CAISO market price or 150-percent of WAPA-SN's actual cost;
- and (3) positive deviations (over-delivery), outside the deviation bandwidth, will be lost to the system, except for any hour when WAPA-SN incurs a cost to dispose of the energy, in which event the responsible party will bear that cost.

Deviations that occur ~~as a result of~~ due to actions taken to support reliability will be resolved in accordance with existing contractual requirements. Such actions include reserve activations or uncontrolled event responses as directed by the responsible reliability authority such as SBA, Host Balancing Authority (HBA), Reliability Coordinator, or Transmission Operator.

**Component 2:**

Any charges or credits associated with the creation, termination, or modification to any tariff, contract, or rate schedule accepted or approved by FERC or other regulatory body will be passed on to each relevant customer. The charges or credits apply to the service to which this rate methodology applies. When possible, WAPA-SN will pass through charges or credits directly to the customer in the same manner WAPA-SN is charged or credited. When not possible, the charges or credits will be passed through using Component 1 of the formula rate.

~~Any charges or credits associated with the creation, termination, or modification to any tariff, contract, or rate schedule accepted or approved by the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission (FERC) or other regulatory bodies will be passed on to each relevant customer. FERC's or other regulatory bodies' accepted or approved charges or credits apply to the service to which this rate~~



~~methodology applies. When possible, WAPA-SN will pass through directly to the relevant customer FERC's or other regulatory bodies' accepted or approved charges or credits in the same manner WAPA-SN is charged or credited. If FERC's or other regulatory bodies' accepted or approved charges or credits cannot be passed through directly to the relevant customer in the same manner WAPA-SN is charged or credited, the charges or credits will be passed through using Component 1 of the formula rate.~~

### **Component 3:**

~~Any charges or credits from the Host Balancing Authority for providing this service will be passed on to each relevant customer. When possible, WAPA-SN will pass through charges and credits directly to the customer in the same manner WAPA-SN is charged or credited. When not possible, the charges or credits will be passed through using Component 1 of the formula rate.~~  
~~Any charges or credits from the HBA applied to WAPA-SN for providing this service will be passed through directly to the relevant customer in the same manner WAPA-SN is charged or credited to the extent possible. If the HBA's charges or credits cannot be passed through to the relevant customer in the same manner WAPA-SN is charged or credited, the charges or credits will be passed through using Component 1 of the formula rate.~~

### **Billing:**

Billing for negative deviations outside the bandwidth, or as otherwise required, will occur monthly.

### **Audit Adjustments:**

Financial audit adjustments that apply to the formula rate under this rate schedule will be evaluated on a case-by-case basis to determine the appropriate treatment for repayment and cash

flow management.

DRAFT

Proposed in Rate Order No. WAPA-207

Rate Schedule CV-~~GID2~~GID3  
(Supersedes Schedule CV-~~GID4~~GID2)

**UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY  
WESTERN AREA POWER ADMINISTRATION**

**CENTRAL VALLEY PROJECT**

**SCHEDULE OF RATE FOR GENERATOR IMBALANCE SERVICE**

**Effective:**

~~The first day of the first full billing period after March 25~~October 1, 2021~~2024~~, through-  
~~December~~September 30, 2024~~9~~, or until ~~superseeded~~superseded by another rate schedule,  
whichever occurs earlier.

**Available:**

~~Within~~In the ~~marketing~~ area served by the Western Area Power Administration (WAPA),  
Sierra Nevada Customer Service Region (SN).

**Applicable:**

To generators receiving Generator Imbalance (GI) Service.

**Character and Conditions of Service:**

GI Service is provided when a difference occurs between the scheduled and actual delivery of energy from an eligible generation resource within the Sub-Balancing Authority (SBA), over an hour, or in accordance with approved policies. The deviation in megawatts is the net scheduled amount of generation minus the net metered output from the generator's (actual generation) amount.

GI Service is subject to the deviation bandwidth established in the service agreement or Interconnected Operations Agreements.

**Formula Rate:**

The formula rate for the GI Service has three components:

**Component 1:**

GI Service is applied to deviations as follows unless otherwise dictated by contract or policy:

(1) deviations within the bandwidth will be tracked and settled financially at the greater of the California Independent System Operator (CAISO) market price or WAPA-SN's actual cost; (2) negative deviations (under-delivery), outside the deviation bandwidth, will be charged the greater of 150-percent of the CAISO market price or 150-percent of WAPA-SN's actual cost; and (3) positive deviations (over-delivery), outside the deviation bandwidth, will be lost to the system, except for any hour when WAPA-SN incurs a cost to dispose of the energy, in which event the responsible party will bear that cost.

Deviations that occur ~~as a result of~~ due to actions taken to support reliability will be resolved in accordance with existing contractual requirements. Such actions include reserve activations or uncontrolled event responses as directed by the responsible reliability authority such as SBA, Host Balancing Authority (HBA), Reliability Coordinator, or Transmission Operator.

To the extent that an entity incorporates intermittent resources, deviations will be charged as follows unless otherwise dictated by contract or policy: (1) deviations within the bandwidth will be tracked and settled financially at the greater of the CAISO market price or WAPA-SN's actual cost; (2) negative deviations (under-delivery), outside the deviation bandwidth, will be charged the greater of market price or actual cost (no penalty); and (3) positive deviations (over-delivery), outside the deviation bandwidth, will be lost to the system, except for any hour where WAPA-SN incurs a cost, then that cost will be borne by the responsible party.

Intermittent generators serving load outside of WAPA-SN's SBA will be required to dynamically schedule or dynamically meter their generation to another Balancing Authority. An

intermittent resource, for the limited purpose of these rate schedules, is an electric generator that is not dispatchable and cannot store its output, and therefore, cannot respond to changes in demand or respond to transmission security constraints.

**Component 2:**

Any charges or credits associated with the creation, termination, or modification to any tariff, contract, or rate schedule accepted or approved by FERC or other regulatory body will be passed on to each relevant customer. The charges or credits apply to the service to which this rate methodology applies. When possible, WAPA-SN will pass through charges or credits directly to the customer in the same manner WAPA-SN is charged or credited. When not possible, the charges or credits will be passed through using Component 1 of the formula rate.

~~Any charges or credits associated with the creation, termination, or modification to any tariff, contract, or rate schedule accepted or approved by the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission (FERC) or other regulatory bodies will be passed on to each relevant customer. FERC's or other regulatory bodies' accepted or approved charges or credits apply to the service to which this rate methodology applies. When possible, WAPA-SN will pass through directly to the relevant customer FERC's or other regulatory bodies' accepted or approved charges or credits in the same manner WAPA-SN is charged or credited. If FERC's or other regulatory bodies' accepted or approved charges or credits cannot be passed through directly to the relevant customer in the same manner WAPA-SN is charged or credited, the charges or credits will be passed through using Component 1 of the formula rate.~~

**Component 3:**

Any charges or credits from the Host Balancing Authority for providing this service will be

~~passed on to each relevant customer. When possible, WAPA-SN will pass through charges and credits directly to the customer in the same manner WAPA-SN is charged or credited. When not possible, the charges or credits will be passed through using Component 1 of the formula rate. Any charges or credits from the HBA applied to WAPA-SN for providing this service will be passed through directly to the relevant customer in the same manner WAPA-SN is charged or credited to the extent possible. If the HBA's charges or credits cannot be passed through to the relevant customer in the same manner WAPA-SN is charged or credited, the charges or credits will be passed through using Component 1 of the formula rate.~~

**Billing:**

Billing for negative deviations outside the bandwidth will occur monthly.

**Adjustment for Audit Adjustments:**

Financial audit adjustments that apply to the formula rate under this rate schedule will be evaluated on a case-by-case basis to determine the appropriate treatment for repayment and cash flow management.

Proposed in Rate Order No. WAPA-207

Rate Schedule CV-~~SPR4~~SPR5  
(Supersedes Schedule CV-~~SPR3~~SPR4)

**UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY  
WESTERN AREA POWER ADMINISTRATION**

**CENTRAL VALLEY PROJECT**

**OPERATING RESERVE - ~~SCHEDULE OF RATE FOR~~ SPINNING RESERVE  
SERVICE**

**Effective:**

October 1, ~~2014~~2024, through September 30, ~~2019~~2029, or until superseded, whichever occurs earlier. ~~[Note: This rate schedule was extended by Rate Order No. WAPA-185 through September 30, 2024.]~~

**Available:**

~~Within~~In the ~~marketing~~ area served by the Western Area Power Administration (~~Western~~WAPA), Sierra Nevada Customer Service Region (SN).

**Applicable:**

To customers receiving spinning reserve service.

**Character and Conditions of Service:**

Spinning ~~R~~reserve ~~S~~service supplies capacity that is available immediately to serve load and is synchronized with the power system.

**Formula Rate:**

The formula rate for spinning reserve includes three components:

**Component 1:**

The formula rate for spinning reserve service is the price consistent with the California Independent System Operator's (CAISO) market plus all costs incurred ~~as a result of~~from the sale of spinning reserves, such as ~~Western~~WAPA-SN's scheduling costs.

For customers that have a contractual obligation to provide spinning reserve to ~~Western~~WAPA-SN and do not fulfill that obligation, the penalty for non-performance is the greater of 150-percent of ~~Western~~WAPA-SN's actual cost or 150-percent of the market price.

**Component 2:**

Any charges or credits associated with the creation, termination, or modification to any tariff, contract, or rate schedule accepted or approved by FERC or other regulatory body will be passed on to each relevant customer. The charges or credits apply to the service to which this rate methodology applies. When possible, WAPA-SN will pass through charges or credits directly to the customer in the same manner WAPA-SN is charged or credited. When not possible, the charges or credits will be passed through using Component 1 of the formula

~~Any charges or credits associated with the creation, termination, or modification to any tariff, contract, or rate schedule accepted or approved by the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission (FERC) or other regulatory bodies will be passed on to each relevant customer. The FERC's or other regulatory bodies' accepted or approved charges or credits apply to the service to which this rate methodology applies. When possible, WesternWAPA-SN will pass through directly to the relevant customer FERC's or other regulatory bodies' accepted or approved charges or credits in the same manner WesternWAPA-SN is charged or credited. If FERC's or other regulatory bodies' accepted or approved charges or credits cannot be passed through directly to the relevant customer in the same manner WesternWAPA-SN is charged or credited, the charges or credits will be passed through using Component 1 of the formula rate.~~

**Component 3:**

Any charges or credits from the Host Balancing Authority for providing this service will be



passed on to each relevant customer. When possible, WAPA-SN will pass through charges and credits directly to the customer in the same manner WAPA-SN is charged or credited. When not possible, the charges or credits will be passed through using Component 1 of the formula rate.

~~—Any charges or credits from the Host Balancing Authority (HBA) applied to Western WAPA-SN for providing this service will be passed through directly to the relevant customer in the same manner Western WAPA-SN is charged or credited to the extent possible. If the HBA's costs charges or credits cannot be passed through to the relevant customer in the same manner Western WAPA-SN is charged or credited, the charges or credits will be passed through using Component 1 of the formula rate.~~

**Billing:**

The formula rate above will be applied to the amount of spinning reserve sold. Billing will occur monthly.

**Adjustment for Audit Adjustments:**

Financial audit adjustments that apply to the formula rate under this rate schedule will be evaluated on a case-by-case basis to determine the appropriate treatment for repayment and cash flow management.

Proposed in Rate Order No. WAPA-207

Rate Schedule CV-UUP2  
(Supersedes ~~New~~ Rate Schedule CV-UUP1)

**UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY  
WESTERN AREA POWER ADMINISTRATION**

**CENTRAL VALLEY PROJECT**

**SCHEDULE OF RATE FOR UNRESERVED USE PENALTIES**

**Effective:**

October 1, ~~2011~~2024, through September 30, ~~2019~~2029, or until superseded, whichever occurs earlier. [~~Note: This rate schedule was extended by Rate Order No. WAPA-185 through September 30, 2024.~~]

**Available:**

~~Within~~ In the ~~marketing~~ area served by the Western Area Power Administration (~~Western~~WAPA), Sierra Nevada Customer Service Region (SNR).

**Applicable:**

~~Western~~ P added this penalty rate for To unreserved use of transmission service for the Central Valley Project, California-Oregon Transmission Project, and Pacific Alternating Current Intertie ~~effective October 1, 2011.~~ This penalty is applicable to point-to-point (PTP) transmission customers using transmission not reserved or ~~in excess of more than reservation reserved,~~ or network customers when they schedule delivery of off-system non-designated purchases using transmission capacity reserved for designated network resources.

**Character and Conditions of Service:**

Transmission service for three-phase, alternating current at 60-hertz, delivered and metered at the voltages and points of delivery or receipt, adjusted for losses, and delivered to points of delivery. This service includes scheduling and system control and dispatch service needed to

support the transmission service.

**Penalty Rate:**

The formula rate for Unreserved Use Penalty (UUP) has three components.

**Component 1:**

~~The UUP service is provided when a transmission customer uses transmission service that it has not reserved or uses transmission service in excess of its reserved capacity.~~—A transmission customer that has not reserved capacity or exceeds its firm or non-firm reserved capacity at any point of receipt or any point of delivery will be assessed UUP.

The penalty charge for a transmission customer who engages in unreserved use is 200-percent of [Western WAPA-SN](#)'s approved transmission service rate for PTP transmission service assessed as follows: (1) the UUP for a single hour of unreserved use will be based upon the rate for daily firm PTP service; (2) the UUP for more than one assessment for a given duration (e.g., daily) will increase to the next longest duration (e.g., weekly); and (3) the UUP for multiple instances of unreserved use (e.g., more than 1 hour) within a day will be based on the rate for daily firm PTP service. The penalty charge for multiple instances of unreserved use isolated to one-calendar week would result in a penalty based on the charge for weekly firm PTP service. The penalty charge for multiple instances of unreserved use during more than one week within a calendar month is based on the charge for monthly firm PTP service.

The UUP will not apply to transmission customers utilizing PTP transmission service under [Western WAPA](#)'s Open Access Transmission Tariff (OATT) ~~as a result of~~because of action taken to support reliability. Such actions include reserve activations or uncontrolled event response as directed by the responsible reliability authority such as Sub-Balancing Authority, Host Balancing Authority (HBA), Reliability Coordinator, or Transmission Operator.

A transmission customer that exceeds its firm or non-firm reserved capacity is required to pay for all ancillary services identified in [WesternWAPA](#)'s OATT associated with the unreserved use of transmission service. The transmission customer or eligible customer will pay for ancillary services, in accordance with existing rate schedules, based on the amount of transmission service it used but did not reserve.

The UUP collected over and above the base PTP rate will be distributed to customers as a credit on future transmission revenue requirements.

**Component 2:**

Any charges or credits associated with the creation, termination, or modification to any tariff, contract, or rate schedule accepted or approved by FERC or other regulatory body will be passed on to each relevant customer. The charges or credits apply to the service to which this rate methodology applies. When possible, WAPA-SN will pass through charges or credits directly to the customer in the same manner WAPA-SN is charged or credited. When not possible, the charges or credits will be passed through using Component 1 of the formula rate.

~~Any charges or credits associated with the creation, termination, or modification to any tariff, contract, or rate schedule accepted or approved by the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission (FERC) or other regulatory bodies will be passed on to each relevant customer. The FERC's or other regulatory bodies' accepted or approved charges or credits apply to the service to which this rate methodology applies. When possible, WesternWAPA-SN will pass through directly to the relevant customer FERC's or other regulatory bodies' accepted or approved charges or credits in the same manner WesternWAPA-SN is charged or credited. If FERC's or other regulatory bodies' accepted or approved charges or credits cannot be passed through directly to~~

~~the relevant customer in the same manner Western WAPA-SN is charged or credited, the charges or credits will be passed through using Component 1 of the penalty rate.~~

### **Component 3:**

~~Any charges or credits from the Host Balancing Authority for providing this service will be passed on to each relevant customer. When possible, WAPA-SN will pass through charges and credits directly to the customer in the same manner WAPA-SN is charged or credited. When not possible, the charges or credits will be passed through using Component 1 of the formula rate.~~

~~Any charges or credits from the HBA applied to Western WAPA-SN for providing this service will be passed through directly to the relevant customer in the same manner Western WAPA-SN is charged or credited to the extent possible. If the HBA's costs or credits cannot be passed through to the relevant customer in the same manner Western WAPA-SN is charged or credited, the charges or credits will be passed through using Component 1 of the penalty rate.~~

### **Billing:**

The UUP will be billed monthly under the formula rate.

### **Adjustments for lossesLosses:**

~~AHHL~~ losses incurred for delivery of power under this rate schedule shall be the responsibility of the customer that received the power.

### **Adjustment for Audit Adjustments:**

Financial audit adjustments that apply to the formula rate will be evaluated on a case-by-case basis to determine the appropriate treatment for repayment and cash flow management.

Proposed in Rate Order No. WAPA-207

Rate Schedule CV-~~SSP2~~SSP3  
(Supersedes Schedule CV-~~SSP1~~SSP2)

**UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY  
WESTERN AREA POWER ADMINISTRATION**

**CENTRAL VALLEY PROJECT**

**SCHEDULE OF RATE FOR SALE OF SURPLUS PRODUCTS**

**Effective:**

October 1, 2024, through September 30, 2029, or until superseded by another rate schedule,  
whichever occurs earlier March 25, 2021, through December 31, 2024.

**Available:**

WithinIn the ~~marketing~~ area served by the Western Area Power Administration (WAPA),  
Sierra Nevada Customer Service Region (SN).

**Applicable:**

To WAPA-SN customers participating in the Sale of Surplus Products.

**Character and Conditions of Service:**

Sale of Surplus Products occurs when there is a sale of surplus energy and/or capacity products. This includes: (1) Energy, (2) Frequency Response [Service](#), (3) Regulation, (4) Reserves, and (5) Resource Sufficiency. If any of the surplus products are available, WAPA-SN could make the product(s) available for sale, provided entities enter into separate agreement(s) which will specify the terms of sale(s).

**Formula Rate:**

The formula rate for Sale of Surplus Products service includes three components:

**Component 1:**

WAPA-SN will determine the charge for each product at the time of sale to be the greater of WAPA-SN's cost or market rates, to include transmission charges. WAPA-SN will use a separate agreement(s) to specify the terms of sale(s). The customer may be responsible for acquiring additional transmission service necessary to deliver the product(s), for which a separate charge may be incurred from the transmission provider.

**Component 2:**

Any charges or credits associated with the creation, termination, or modification to any tariff, contract, or rate schedule accepted or approved by FERC or other regulatory body will be passed on to each relevant customer. The charges or credits apply to the service to which this rate methodology applies. When possible, WAPA-SN will pass through charges or credits directly to the customer in the same manner WAPA-SN is charged or credited. When not possible, the charges or credits will be passed through using Component 1 of the formula rate.

~~Any charges or credits associated with the creation, termination, or modification to any tariff, contract, or rate schedule accepted or approved by the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission (FERC) or other regulatory bodies will be passed on to each relevant customer. FERC's or other regulatory bodies' accepted or approved charges or credits apply to the service to which this rate methodology applies. When possible, WAPA-SN will pass through directly to the relevant customer FERC's or other regulatory bodies' accepted or approved charges or credits in the same manner WAPA-SN is charged or credited. If FERC's or other regulatory bodies' accepted or approved charges or credits cannot be passed through directly to the relevant customer in the same manner WAPA-SN is charged or credited, the charges or credits will be passed through using Component 1 of the formula rate.~~

**Component 3:**

Any charges or credits from the Host Balancing Authority for providing this service will be passed on to each relevant customer. When possible, WAPA-SN will pass through charges and credits directly to the customer in the same manner WAPA-SN is charged or credited. When not possible, the charges or credits will be passed through using Component 1 of the formula rate. ~~Any charges or credits from the Host Balancing Authority (HBA) applied to WAPA-SN for providing this service will be passed through directly to the relevant customer in the same manner WAPA-SN is charged or credited to the extent possible. If the HBA's costs charges or credits cannot be passed through to the relevant customer in the same manner WAPA-SN is charged or credited, the charges or credits will be passed through using Component 1 of the formula rate.~~

**Billing:**

The formula rate above will be applied to the Sale of Surplus product(s) sold. Billing will occur monthly.

**Adjustment for Audit Adjustments:**

Financial audit adjustments that apply to the formula rate under this rate schedule will be evaluated on a case-by-case basis to determine the appropriate treatment for repayment and cash flow management.



Proposed in Rate Order No. WAPA-207

Rate Schedule CV-EIM1S ~~EIM2S~~  
(Supersedes ~~Rate Schedule CV-EIM1S~~)

**UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY  
WESTERN AREA POWER ADMINISTRATION**

**CENTRAL VALLEY PROJECT**

**SCHEDULE OF RATE FOR ENERGY IMBALANCE MARKET  
ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICE CHARGE**

**Effective:**

~~March 25~~ October 1, 2024, through ~~December~~ September 30, 2029, or until  
superseded, whichever occurs earlier.

**Available:**

~~Within~~ In the ~~marketing~~ area served by the Western Area Power Administration (WAPA),  
Sierra Nevada Customer Service Region (SN).

**Applicable:**

This rate applies to WAPA-SN customers when WAPA-SN, as Transmission Provider, is  
participating in Energy Imbalance Market (EIM) and when EIM has not been suspended. To the  
extent WAPA-SN incurs EIM Administrative Service-related ~~charges~~ costs from the EIM Entity  
during periods of market suspension or contingency, ~~this schedule also applies to ensure that~~  
~~WAPA-SN, as Transmission Provider, remains revenue neutral for its participation in EIM.~~

**Character and Conditions of Service:**

The EIM Administrative Service ~~rate~~ Charge recovers the administrative costs for  
participating in the EIM by WAPA-SN as a Transmission Provider, including but not limited to  
such administrative charges as may be incurred by WAPA-SN from California Independent

System Operator (CAISO) as the EIM Market Operator (MO) and/or Balancing Authority of Northern California (BANC) as the EIM Entity.

Unless such charges are allocated to the Transmission Customer directly by BANC, all Transmission Customers purchasing Long-Term Firm Point-to-Point Transmission Service, Short-Term Firm Point-to-Point Transmission Service, Non-Firm Point-to-Point Transmission Service, or Network Integration Transmission Service from WAPA-SN shall ~~be required to acquire~~ incur an EIM Administrative Service Charge from WAPA-SN.

CAISO's Administrative Service Charge, as defined in the MO Tariff, is included in this rate. This rate also includes administrative charges assessed to WAPA-SN by BANC based on net energy load within the WAPA-SN Sub-Balancing Authority Area.

**Formula Rate:**

The formula rate for EIM Administrative Service ~~Charge~~ includes three components:

**Component 1:**

~~The~~ EIM Administrative Service ~~Charge costs~~ shall be sub-allocated to WAPA-SN's Transmission Customers based on load ratio share for the time ~~period~~ in which WAPA-SN incurs EIM administrative costs.

**Component 2:**

Any charges or credits associated with the creation, termination, or modification to any tariff, contract, or rate schedule accepted or approved by FERC or other regulatory body will be passed on to each relevant customer. The charges or credits apply to the service to which this rate methodology applies. When possible, WAPA-SN will pass through charges or credits directly to the customer in the same manner WAPA-SN is charged or credited. When not possible, the charges or credits will be passed through using Component 1 of the formula rate.

~~Any charges or credits associated with the creation, termination, or modification to any tariff, contract, or rate schedule accepted or approved by the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission (FERC) or other regulatory bodies will be passed on to each relevant customer. FERC's or other regulatory bodies' accepted or approved charges or credits apply to the service to which this rate methodology applies. When possible, WAPA-SN will pass through directly to the relevant customer FERC's or other regulatory bodies' accepted or approved charges or credits in the same manner WAPA-SN is charged or credited. If FERC's or other regulatory bodies' accepted or approved charges or credits cannot be passed through directly to the relevant customer in the same manner WAPA-SN is charged or credited, the charges or credits will be passed through using Component 1 of the formula rate.~~

**Component 3:**

Any charges or credits from the Host Balancing Authority for providing this service will be passed on to each relevant customer. When possible, WAPA-SN will pass through charges and credits directly to the customer in the same manner WAPA-SN is charged or credited. When not possible, the charges or credits will be passed through using Component 1 of the formula rate. —  
~~Any charges or credits from the Host Balancing Authority (HBA) applied to WAPA-SN for providing this service will be passed through directly to the relevant customer in the same manner WAPA-SN is charged or credited to the extent possible. If the HBA's charges or credits cannot be passed through to the relevant customer in the same manner WAPA-SN is charged or credited, the charges or credits will be passed through using Component 1 of the formula rate.~~

**Billing:**

Billing will occur monthly.

**Adjustment for Audit Adjustments:**

Financial audit adjustments that apply to the formula rate under this rate schedule will be evaluated on a case-by-case basis to determine the appropriate treatment for repayment and cash flow management.

DRAFT

Proposed in Rate Order No. WAPA-207

Rate Schedule CV-~~EIM4S~~EIM4S1  
(Supersedes Rate Schedule CV-EIM4S)

**UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY  
WESTERN AREA POWER ADMINISTRATION**

**CENTRAL VALLEY PROJECT**

**SCHEDULE OF RATE FOR ENERGY IMBALANCE MARKET  
ENERGY IMBALANCE SERVICE**

**Effective:**

~~March 25~~October 1, 2021~~2024~~, through ~~December~~September 30, 2024~~2029~~, or until  
superseded, whichever occurs earlier.

**Available:**

~~Within~~In the ~~marketing~~ area served by the Western Area Power Administration (WAPA),  
Sierra Nevada Customer Service Region (SN).

**Applicable:**

This rate applies to WAPA-SN customers receiving Energy Imbalance (EI) Service when  
WAPA-SN, as Transmission Provider, is participating in Energy Imbalance Market (EIM) and  
when EIM has not been suspended. To the extent WAPA-SN incurs EIM EI Service-related  
charges from the EIM Entity during periods of market suspension or contingency, ~~this schedule~~  
~~will also apply to ensure that WAPA-SN, as Transmission Provider, remains revenue neutral for~~  
~~its participation in EIM.~~

**Character and Conditions of Service:**

EI Service is provided when a difference occurs between the scheduled and the actual  
delivery of energy to a load located within the WAPA-SN Sub-Balancing Authority Area (Sub-

BAA). WAPA-SN offers this service when transmission service is used to serve load within the WAPA-SN Sub-BAA.

Unless subsequently imposed by California Independent System Operator (CAISO) as the Market Operator (MO) as part of the MO Tariff and promulgated by WAPA through rate proceedings, there shall be no incremental transmission charge assessed for transmission use related to the EIM. Transmission Customers must have transmission service rights, as set forth in Attachment S of WAPA's Tariff.

**Formula Rate:**

The formula rate for EI Service includes three components:

**Component 1:**

EI Service is the deviation of the Transmission Customer's metered load compared to the load component of the Transmission Customer Base Schedule settled as Uninstructed Imbalance Energy (UIE) for the period of the deviation at the applicable Load Aggregation Point (LAP) price where the load is located.

Unless such charges are allocated to the Transmission Customer directly by Balancing Authority of Northern California (BANC) as the EIM Entity, a Transmission Customer will be responsible for any pass-through charges and/or credits associated with applicable EI Service charges allocated to WAPA-SN, as Transmission Provider, for its participation in the EIM, in accordance with this rate schedule. WAPA-SN will sub-allocate load charges based on a Transmission Customer's load ratio share.

WAPA will charge a penalty for out-of-bandwidth negative deviations (under-delivery), at the greater of 150-percent of the CAISO market price or 150-percent of WAPA-SN's actual cost.

**Component 2:**

Any charges or credits associated with the creation, termination, or modification to any tariff, contract, or rate schedule accepted or approved by FERC or other regulatory body will be passed on to each relevant customer. The charges or credits apply to the service to which this rate methodology applies. When possible, WAPA-SN will pass through charges or credits directly to the customer in the same manner WAPA-SN is charged or credited. When not possible, the charges or credits will be passed through using Component 1 of the formula rate.

~~Any charges or credits associated with the creation, termination, or modification to any tariff, contract, or rate schedule accepted or approved by the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission (FERC) or other regulatory bodies will be passed on to each relevant customer. FERC's or other regulatory bodies' accepted or approved charges or credits apply to the service to which this rate methodology applies. When possible, WAPA-SN will pass through directly to the relevant customer FERC's or other regulatory bodies' accepted or approved charges or credits in the same manner WAPA-SN is charged or credited. If FERC's or other regulatory bodies' accepted or approved charges or credits cannot be passed through directly to the relevant customer in the same manner WAPA-SN is charged or credited, the charges or credits will be passed through using Component 1 of the formula rate.~~

**Component 3:**

Any charges or credits from the Host Balancing Authority for providing this service will be passed on to each relevant customer. When possible, WAPA-SN will pass through charges and credits directly to the customer in the same manner WAPA-SN is charged or credited. When not possible, the charges or credits will be passed through using Component 1 of the formula rate.

~~Any charges or credits from the Host Balancing Authority (HBA) applied to WAPA-SN for~~

~~providing this service will be passed through directly to the relevant customer in the same manner WAPA SN is charged or credited to the extent possible. If the HBA's charges or credits cannot be passed through to the relevant customer in the same manner WAPA SN is charged or credited, the charges or credits will be passed through using Component 1 of the formula rate.~~

**Billing:**

Billing will occur monthly.

**Adjustment for Audit Adjustments:**

Financial audit adjustments that apply to the formula rate under this rate schedule will be evaluated on a case-by-case basis to determine the appropriate treatment for repayment and cash flow management.



Proposed in Rate Order No. WAPA-207

Rate Schedule CV-EIM9S1  
(Supersedes Rate Schedule CV-EIM9S)

**UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY  
WESTERN AREA POWER ADMINISTRATION**

**CENTRAL VALLEY PROJECT**

**SCHEDULE OF RATE FOR ENERGY IMBALANCE MARKET  
GENERATOR IMBALANCE SERVICE**

**Effective:**

~~March 25~~October 1, 2021~~4~~, through ~~December~~September 30, 2024~~2029~~, or until  
~~superseded, whichever occurs earlier.~~

**Available:**

~~Within~~In the ~~marketing~~ area served by the Western Area Power Administration (WAPA),  
Sierra Nevada Customer Service Region (SN).

**Applicable:**

This rate applies to WAPA-SN customers receiving Generator Imbalance (GI) Service when  
WAPA-SN, as Transmission Provider, is participating in Energy Imbalance Market (EIM) and  
when EIM has not been suspended. To the extent WAPA-SN incurs EIM GI Service-related  
charges from the EIM Entity during periods of market suspension or contingency, ~~this schedule  
will also apply to ensure that WAPA-SN, as Transmission Provider, remains revenue-neutral for  
its participation in EIM.~~

**Character and Conditions of Service:**

GI Service is provided when a difference occurs between the output of EIM Non-Participating  
Resource located in the WAPA-SN Sub-Balancing Authority (Sub-BAA), as reflected in the  
resource component of the Transmission Customer Base Schedule, and the delivery schedule

from that generator to (1) another BAA, (2) the Balancing Authority of Northern California (BANC) BAA, or (3) a load within the WAPA-SN Sub-BAA.

Unless subsequently imposed by California Independent System Operator (CAISO) as the Market Operator (MO) as part of the MO Tariff and promulgated by WAPA through rate proceedings, there shall be no incremental transmission charge assessed for transmission use related to the EIM. Transmission Customers must have transmission service rights, as set forth in Attachment S of WAPA's Tariff.

**Formula Rate:**

The formula rate for GI Service includes three components:

**Component 1:**

Unless such charges are allocated to the Transmission Customer directly by BANC as the EIM Entity, a Transmission Customer shall be responsible for any pass-through charges and/or credits associated with applicable GI Service charges allocated to WAPA-SN, as Transmission Provider, for its participation in EIM, in accordance with this rate schedule. Such charges will be included due to operational adjustments of any affected Interchange. WAPA-SN will directly assign charges and/or sub-allocate charges based on the Transmission Customer's load ratio share.

WAPA will charge a penalty for out-of-bandwidth negative -deviations (under-delivery), at the greater of 150-percent of the CAISO market price or 150-percent of WAPA-SN's actual cost.

**Component 2:**

Any charges or credits associated with the creation, termination, or modification to any tariff, contract, or rate schedule accepted or approved by FERC or other regulatory body will be passed on to each relevant customer. The charges or credits apply to the service to which this

rate methodology applies. When possible, WAPA-SN will pass through charges or credits directly to the customer in the same manner WAPA-SN is charged or credited. When not possible, the charges or credits will be passed through using Component 1 of the formula rate.

~~Any charges or credits associated with the creation, termination, or modification to any tariff, contract, or rate schedule accepted or approved by the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission (FERC) or other regulatory bodies will be passed on to each relevant customer. FERC's or other regulatory bodies' accepted or approved charges or credits apply to the service to which this rate methodology applies. When possible, WAPA-SN will pass through directly to the relevant customer FERC's or other regulatory bodies' accepted or approved charges or credits in the same manner WAPA-SN is charged or credited. If FERC's or other regulatory bodies' accepted or approved charges or credits cannot be passed through directly to the relevant customer in the same manner WAPA-SN is charged or credited, the charges or credits will be passed through using Component 1 of the formula rate.~~

### **Component 3:**

Any charges or credits from the Host Balancing Authority for providing this service will be passed on to each relevant customer. When possible, WAPA-SN will pass through charges and credits directly to the customer in the same manner WAPA-SN is charged or credited. When not possible, the charges or credits will be passed through using Component 1 of the formula rate.

~~Any charges or credits from the Host Balancing Authority (HBA) applied to WAPA-SN for providing this service will be passed through directly to the relevant customer in the same manner WAPA-SN is charged or credited to the extent possible. If the HBA's charges or credits cannot be passed through to the relevant customer in the same manner WAPA-SN is charged or~~

~~credited, the charges or credits will be passed through using Component 1 of the formula rate.~~

**Billing:**

Billing will occur monthly.

**~~Adjustment for~~ Audit Adjustments:**

Financial audit adjustments that apply to the formula rate under this rate schedule will be evaluated on a case-by-case basis to determine the appropriate treatment for repayment and cash flow management.

DRAFT